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penalty shall not exceed the greater of
$11,000 or an amount equal to 200% of
any contribution or expenditure in-
volved in the violation.

(ii) Notwithstanding paragraph
(a)(2)(1) of this section, in the case of a
knowing and willful violation of 2
U.S.C. 441f, the civil penalty shall not
be less than 300% of the amount of any
contribution involved in the violation
and shall not exceed the greater of
$55,000 or 1,000% of the amount of any
contribution involved in the violation.

(b) Any Commission member or em-
ployee, or any other person, who in vio-
lation of 2 U.S.C. 437g(a)(12)(A) makes
public any notification or investiga-
tion under 2 U.S.C. 437g without receiv-
ing the written consent of the person
receiving such notification, or the per-
son with respect to whom such inves-
tigation is made, shall be fined not
more than $2,200. Any such member,
employee, or other person who know-
ingly and willfully violates this provi-
sion shall be fined not more than $6,500.

[62 FR 11317, Mar. 12, 1997; 62 FR 18167, Apr.
14, 1997; 656 FR 31794, May 19, 2000; 67 FR 76977,
Dec. 13, 2002; 70 FR 34635, June 15, 2005]

Subpart B—Administrative Fines

SOURCE: 65 FR 31794, May 19, 2000, unless
otherwise noted.

§111.30 When will subpart B apply?

Subpart B applies to violations of the
reporting requirements of 2 TU.S.C.
434(a) committed by political commit-
tees and their treasurers that relate to
the reporting periods that begin on or
after July 14, 2000 and end on or before
December 31, 2008. This subpart, how-
ever, does not apply to reports that
were due between January 1, 2004 and
February 10, 2004 and that relate to re-
porting periods that begin and end be-
tween January 1, 2004 and February 10,
2004.

[70 FR 75718, Dec. 21, 2005]

§111.31 Does this subpart replace sub-
part A of this part for violations of
the reporting requirements of 2
U.S.C. 434(a)?

(a) No; §§111.1 through 111.8 and 111.20
through 111.24 shall apply to all com-
pliance matters. This subpart will

§111.32

apply, rather than §§111.9 through
111.19, when the Commission, on the
basis of information ascertained by the
Commission in the normal course of
carrying out its supervisory respon-
sibilities, and when appropriate, deter-
mines that the compliance matter
should be subject to this subpart. If the
Commission determines that the viola-
tion should not be subject to this sub-
part, then the violation will be subject
to all sections of subpart A of this part.

(b) Subpart B will apply to compli-
ance matters resulting from a com-
plaint filed pursuant to 11 CFR 111.4
through 111.7 if the complaint alleges a
violation of 2 U.S.C. 434(a). If the com-
plaint alleges violations of any other
provision of any statute or regulation
over which the Commission has juris-
diction, subpart A will apply to the al-
leged violations of these other provi-
sions.

§111.32 How will the Commission no-
tify respondents of a reason to be-
lieve finding and a proposed civil
money penalty?

If the Commission determines, by an
affirmative vote of at least four (4) of
its members, that it has reason to be-
lieve that a respondent has violated 2
U.S.C. 434(a), the Chairman or Vice-
Chairman shall notify such respondent
of the Commission’s finding. The writ-
ten notification shall set forth the fol-
lowing:

(a) The alleged factual and legal
basis supporting the finding including
the type of report that was due, the fil-
ing deadline, the actual date filed (if
filed), and the number of days the re-
port was late (if filed);

(b) The applicable schedule of pen-
alties;

(c) The number of times the respond-
ent has been assessed a civil money
penalty under this subpart during the
current two-year election cycle and the
prior two-year election cycle;

(d) The amount of the proposed civil
money penalty based on the schedules
of penalties set forth in 11 CFR 111.43
or 111.44; and

(e) An explanation of the respond-
ent’s right to challenge both the reason
to believe finding and the proposed
civil money penalty.
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